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Martinez, Erik@Coastal

From: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal
Sent: Thursday, April 29, 2021 3:08 PM
To: Martinez, Erik@Coastal

Subject: FW: RE:

From: Carl, Dan@Coastal <Dan.Carl@coastal.ca.gov>

Sent: Thursday, October 29, 2020 4:06 PM

To: Martinez, Erik@Coastal <erik.martinez@coastal.ca.gov>

Cc: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal <Jeannine.Manna@coastal.ca.gov>; Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal
<Stephanie.Rexing@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: FW: RE:

FYI and for file

From: Don Horsley <dhorsley@smcgov.org>

Date: Thursday, October 29, 2020 at 3:53 PM

To: Alec Hogg <alec.hogg.ir@gmail.com>, Carl, Dan@Coastal <Dan.Carl@coastal.ca.gov>, Manna,
Jeannine@Coastal <Jeannine.Manna@coastal.ca.gov>, mitchellimagingstudio@yahoo.com
<mitchellimagingstudio@yahoo.com>

Cc: Michelle Hogg <michelleh2691@gmail.com>, ethanmiller31@yahoo.com <ethanmiller31@yahoo.com>,
mitchphoto@aol.com <mitchphoto@aol.com>, Thoff238@gmail.com <Thoff238@gmail.com>,
theaff57@gmail.com <theaff57@gmail.com>, Lori@wilson5.com <Lori@wilson5.com>, ken@wilson5.com
<ken@wilson5.com>, ROBIN and PATRICK TIERNEY <adrift650@comcast.net>

Subject: RE:

Thanks for your message and | to requested that the MCC hold off on sending a letter to the Coastal Commission. In fact
| asked them wait until | and the Department of Public Works and their consulting engineer could attend to give factual
information.

From: Alec Hogg <alec.hogg.ir@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 5:31 PM

To: Dan.Carl@coastal.ca.gov; Jeannine.Manna@coastal.ca.gov; Don Horsley <dhorsley@smcgov.org>;
mitchellimagingstudio@yahoo.com

Cc: Michelle Hogg <michelleh2691@gmail.com>; ethanmiller31@yahoo.com; mitchphoto@aol.com;
Thoff238@gmail.com; theaff57 @gmail.com; Lori@wilson5.com; ken@wilson5.com; ROBIN and PATRICK TIERNEY
<adriftb50@comcast.net>

Subject:

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of San Mateo County. Unless you recognize the sender's email address and know
the content is safe, do not click links, open attachments or reply.

Dear Midcoast Council members,



I am writing this note to request that the Midcoast Council (MCC) delay sending any recommendation to the
Coastal Commission.

| attended the last session of the MCC where the topic of the Arroyo de Medio bridge was discussed as one of
several agenda items. In that session, most of the council appeared to be unaware of many of the details of the
plan. The guest speakers made strong recommendations for the MCC to communicate to the Coastal
Commission that the MCC does not support replacing the Arroyo de Medio Coastal trail bridge in its current
location, and that the MCC does suggest finding a new location. The speakers suggested that the
replacement bridge could easily be constructed over Arroyo de Medio at Alameda Avenue.

As | understand it, the MCC is now reviewing a letter to send to the Coastal Commision with these
suggestions.

There does not appear to have been a thorough review of the public’s opinion on this matter nor consideration
of alternative options.

| would like to suggest that further research and community engagement be completed before the MCC sends
a letter to the Coastal Commission.

Here are some points that support my request:

1. A bridge across Arroyo de Medio at Alameda Avenue would require considerable investment.

a. A conforming street would need to be constructed from Mirada Road to the creek, adding
sidewalks, proper pavement, lighting and drainage.

b. A conforming street would also need to be constructed from Medio Avenue to the end of
Alameda.

c. Property would need to be acquired from the homeowners on both streets. No property owners
have indicated they would be interested in selling their property. My research into the Coastal
Act indicates that the Coastal Commission has no power of eminent domain, and depends on
private landholders to voluntarily provide access to land. Raising funds to purchase land would
take considerable time.

d. The bridge across the creek would have substantial environmental impact. Arroyo de Medio is
a sensitive creek that is home to a wide variety of wildlife including raptors, owls, foxes, coyotes,
snakes, and a variety of rodents. | have observed this creek for twenty two years. If the water
were not impounded for agricultural use higher in the watershed, the creek would flow all year
round and be a habitat for more riparian wildlife. Building a new bridge would negatively impact
the current wildlife. Study of the impact of building a bridge would be required before
construction of a bridge and mitigation of damage to the corridor would need to be taken. All
this would require time and money and would ignore the ultimate goal of remedying the historic
damage.

1. The suggestions | heard presented in the last meeting focused on rejecting the currently approved
plans for replacing the Arroyo de Medio bridge in its current location on Mirada Road because, in the
opinion of the presenters, it was not a viable long term solution. The current bridge lasted 18 years with
no maintenance. If properly maintained, a replacement bridge could last far longer. | recognize that
the ocean is rising, as a result of climate change, and is therefore eroding the bluffs. However, the
highway near Surfers Beach and all of Mirada Road will be impacted long before a replacement bridge
becomes obsolete. If the objective of a bridge is to preserve the public’s access to the beaches, the
current plan satisfies that objective most immediately. Meanwhile, the MCC and all citizens, should
spend time developing a long term strategic plan that satisfies the mandates of the Coastal Act, and the
realities of climate change, while taking into account the lives of residents and visitors.

3. Moving the bridge to Alameda does not achieve the objectives of the Coastal Plan. It does not increase
or improve access to the beaches for the public. In fact, it creates many new constraints, restrictions
and issues, which would require additional investments to protect beach access. It is time for the MCC
to consider other projects and plans that would both achieve the Coastal Commission’s objectives of
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protecting the natural assets of the California Coast, and ensuring that the public can access and enjoy
these assets.

a. Forinstance, the Mid Coast Multimodal Trail project offers a wonderful opportunity to improve
and expand access to the Coastside and to improve the experience provided by the current
Coastal Trail configuration. The current plan for the Mid Coast Multimodal Trail includes
expanding the existing trail to a segment between Mirada Road and Coronado on the east side
of Highway 1. The plan also includes discussion of a tunnel under Highway 1 allowing Arroyo
de Medio to flow more naturally. The tunnel would include a walkway that pedestrians and
bikers could use. Connecting the Coastal Trail to the Mid Coast Multimodal Trail would:

i. allow safe access to the beach by people living on the east side of Highway 1,

ii.  with slight modification, improve the experience of the Coastal Trail to include the hills
above El Granada and the extensive trail network of Quarry Park and Rancho Corral de
Tierra.

iii.  potentially allow for additional parking and services (e.g bathrooms) in the parking lots
on the east side of Highway 1.

b. There are other county and state plans that consider building optimal access to the coast and
for making non-automobile transportation easier, safer and more enjoyable. These plans take
into account the current needs of coastsiders and visitors, providing optimal flows of traffic.

Alternative plans should be considered before recommendations are made. It is likely that it
would be a lot less expensive to connect the Coast trail to the Multimodal Trail and maybe
augment it, rather than building additional bridges across Arroyo de Medio.

Nineteen years ago, my wife and | presented to the MCC to request approval for remodeling our house. The
house was originaly built as part of the Ocean Shore Railroad around 1906. The design we submitted
complied with all Coastal Commission, San Mateo County and MCC requirements. We were careful not to
violate any provisions created to protect the riparian zone of Arroyo de Medio. We thought it was important to
ensure the creek was not damaged or compromised any further. The MCC approved our plans, commended
our efforts to use green building practices, and to keep the protection of the community and the environment in
mind.

I hope that the MCC will continue the mindful and discerning approach | experienced nineteen years ago by
protecting our community by either:
e proceeding with supporting the currently approved and funded project to replace the current Arroyo de
Medio bridge on Mirada Road or
e not proceeding with any recommendations to the Coastal Commission before further investigation and
review.

Protecting the environment is important. Providing the community (residents and visitors) with access to this
special natural resource is important. Money is hard to come by and funds should be used for maximal
positive impact. The first option will allow the community to enjoy the current trail configuration almost
immediately while a longer term plan is developed. The second option, though forcing the community to wait
longer, would lead to a holistic approach to achieving the objectives of the MCC, the Coastal Commission and
most residents: preserving, sharing and enjoying the beauty of the coast.

Sincerely,

Alec Hogg



Martinez, Erik@Coastal

From: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

Sent: Thursday, April 29, 2021 3:09 PM

To: Martinez, Erik@Coastal

Subject: FW: LCD for Medio Creek Coastal Trail Bridge Replacement

Attachments: Factsheet of Reason to Replace Medio Bridge -Final 12-14-20p.pdf; Signed petition

Medio Bridge 11-1-20- Final.pdf; Mirada RdMedio Creek Bridge Replacement (002).pdf

From: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal <Jeannine.Manna@coastal.ca.gov>
Sent: Friday, December 18, 2020 3:09 PM

To: Martinez, Erik@Coastal <erik.martinez@coastal.ca.gov>

Cc: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal <Stephanie.Rexing@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: FW: LCD for Medio Creek Coastal Trail Bridge Replacement

FYl and for the file. Have you heard anything from the County since our last filing letter?

From: PATRICK and ROBIN TIERNEY <adrift650@comcast.net>

Sent: Thursday, December 17, 2020 9:47 PM

To: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal <Jeannine.Manna@coastal.ca.gov>

Cc: alec.hogg.ir@gmail.com; ethanmiller31@yahoo.com; dave krasowski <dave.krasowski@gmail.com>; Carl,
Dan@Coastal <Dan.Carl@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: LCD for Medio Creek Coastal Trail Bridge Replacement

Jeannine Manna
California Coastal Commission

Dear Ms. Manna,

| wanted to send you information about San Mateo County's proposal and LCD application to replace
the Medio Creek Coastal Trail Bridge in Miramar at its current location. We strongly support the
County's proposal, including its bluff stabilization plan. A group of Miramar residents developed the
attached list of 14 primary reasons, with supporting statements, to replace the Medio Creek Coastal
Trail Bridge at its current location, as soon as possible. This list was based on studies done by the
County, two engineering firms and the Army Corps of Engineers, legal opinions, as well as extensive
discussions with Miramar residents and one neighborhood meeting on this topic. It is supported by
the attached letter from Ethan Miller and the petition now signed by 49 Miramar residents urging the
County to: 1) Replace the bridge at its current location and 2) Develop a comprehensive plan for the
Mirada Road and Coastal Trail corridor, north, south and east of the bridge. We firmly believe we
have documented strong reasons for replacing the Medio Creek bridge at its current location.

We would appreciate your consideration of this important matter. We are particularly concerned about
the October 28, 2020 to the California Coastal Commission (CCC) by the Midcoast Community
Council (MCC). We strongly feel this letter was sent prematurely because they did not give
reasonable notice and seek feedback from those who would be most immediately and directly
impacted by the contents of the letter, the residents of Miramar, and it lacks any engineering support
for its recommendation for an inland route for the bridge and Coastal Trail. Their proposed inland
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route would necessitate at least 10 more years before a new bridge could possibly be built and safe
coastal access restored. The County proposal would, with your approval, be in place in less than one
year.

Below is a summary of14 key reasons why we believe replacing the bridge at its current location, as
soon as possible, is the best, most prompt and least costly way to improve safe coastal access, with
the least amount of disruption to the environment of the coastal zone and local residents. The
attachment has supporting statements and documentation for each of these reasons.

Please make this part of the record on this issue. Thank you for your consideration. We are happy to
provide any additional information and respond to any questions.

Sincerely,

Patrick Tierney Ph.D. and Robin Tierney
241 Mirada Road
Half Moon Bay, CA

SUMMARY OF REASONS TO REPLACE MEDIO CREEK COASTAL TRAIL BRIDGE AT CURRENT
LOCATION
Prepared By Mirada Residents, as of 12/13/20

1. The Medio Creek Coastal Trail Bridge is an incredibly important asset of this community for
transportation and area tourism and its closure has had negative impacts.

2. Replacing Medio Creek Bridge at its current location (RMCB) is the quickest way to open the
coastal trail and improve coastal access without the lengthy detour.

3. RMCB is also the least expensive alternative, except for the current detour, to replace that
section of the Coastal Trail in the short and long term.

4. All parties agree replacing Medio Creek bridge in its current location is feasible from an
engineering perspective

5. Three different engineering studies (CSW Stuber Mirada Road Project Benefits and
Alternatives Analysis (October 2019), PARIKH's Geotechnical Design Recommendations
(January 2020) and the Count Department of Public Works submission (June 3, 2020)) state
the bluff stabilization proposed at the mouth of Medio Creek will be effective.



6. Replacing the bridge at its current location is simply a maintenance issue, while building a
bridge elsewhere is a significant new project requiring more analysis and starting of new
regulatory applications.

7. Reliance for access to the Coastal Trail on the current detour route along Mirada and Miramar
Roads, Highway 1 and Medio Ave. poses an increased public safety hazard.

8. The Miramar community is united to replace the bridge in its current location, as indicated by a
petition, signed by 49 Miramar residents, supporting replacing the bride at its current location
as soon as possible.

9. An aluminum bridge will last 40 years, according to the October 2019 CSW Engineering
Analysis. Even if a new Medio Creek bridge had to be replaced in 20-40 years it is still cost
effective versus waiting 10 years for a bridge at another interior site.

10. Section 30235 of the Coastal Act includes language allowing improvements to protect coastal-
dependent uses and existing structures. We believe that the Mirada Road pedestrian bridge
meets this criterion.

11.The October 28 Midcoast Community Council (MCC) letter to the California Coastal
Commission (CCC) was premature because they did not give reasonable notice and seek
feedback from those who would be most immediately and directly impacted by the contents of
the letter, the residents of Miramar.

12.Medio Creek bridge affects all of Mirada Road and the County and City cannot try to piece-
meal the issues. The County, City, State Parks, and the Harbor District need a plan, including
safe beach assess points, roads, parking, restrooms, trash collection, etc., for all of Mirada
Road and the coastal trail that traverses it.

13.Sand erosion at the bridge foundation, to some extent, is man-caused due to harbor
construction stopping sand replenishment, so a man-made bluff stabilization is appropriate

14.The bridge area is a relatively small space/pocket which is surrounded by large areas of rip
rap. The proposed armoring and bluff stabilization would have very little or no impact on sand
transfer to the south.
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From: Patrick Tierney

To: Martinez, Erik@Coastal

Subject: Fwd: 1,128 signatures on petition to replace Medio Creek bridge in same location
Date: Friday, February 26, 2021 8:53:40 PM

Hello Erik,

I am forwarding an email from the Mayor of Half Moon Bay in support of replacing the
Medio Creek Coastal trail bridge in its current location.

Regards,

Patrick Tierney

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Robert Brownstone <rbrownstone@hmbcity.com>

Date: February 16, 2021 at 6:01:28 PM MST

To: PATRICK and ROBIN TIERNEY <adrift650@comcast.net>

Subject: Re: 1,128 signatures on petition to replace Medio Creek bridge in
same location

Hi Patrick,

Thank you and all the volunteers for everyone's participation in gathering the
many signatures on the petition to replace the Medio Creek Bridge in its current
location.

In lieu of the current alternatives, | support the County's efforts to move forward
on this project.

Best,

Robert

Robert Brownstone

Mayor

City of Half Moon Bay

501 Main Street, Half Moon Bay, CA 94019
(650) 726-8250

rbrownstone@hmbcity.coml www.hmbcity.com




From: PATRICK and ROBIN TIERNEY <adrift650@comcast.net>

Sent: Wednesday, February 10, 2021 7:28 PM

To: Robert Brownstone <RBrownstone@hmbcity.com>

Cc: Jessica Blair <JBlair@hmbcity.com>

Subject: 1,128 signatures on petition to replace Medio Creek bridge in same location

[CAUTION]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Robert,

A quick note to inform you a small group of local volunteers over a seven
day period just gathered a total of 1,128 signatures on a petition to
"Replace the Medio Creek Bridge At Current Location As Soon As
Possible” from Coastal Trail users at both ends of the closed Medio Creek
bridge. A total of 65.2% of these signatures were by non-residents and
34.8% were local residents of Half Moon Bay, El Granada, Princeton,
Moss Beach or Montara.

These signatures clearly show how important the Coastal Trail and the
Medio Creek Bridge are to both visitors and residents for coastal access
and recreation, and how nearly everyone wants to see the bridge replaced
as soon as possible at its current location. AlImost no one we talked with
(less than 1%) wanted the bridge/trail to go inland or to continue the
detour we have now. Signers frequently mentioned how the current detour
is long, detracts from their coastal experience and is dangerous. One bike
rider said he crashed on it and showed me the cuts on his arm. An older
woman with a walker said the detour was unrealistic for her to travel on
and prevented her from accessing the trail - an ADA issue. She and many
other signers turned around and went back, and did not continue on the
detour (which was not their plan/preference). Please consider these
signatures as an indication of the "will of the people." The signers, local
residents and | all feel replacing the bridge at the current site is consistent
with the CCC mission to protect and enhance California’s coast and its
shoreline public access and recreation. This is just a maintenance and
repair issue. We would appreciate you considering these petitions and our
concerns, and continue to support approval of the CDP for the Medio
Creek Coastal Trail Bridge presented by San Mateo County.

Regards,

Patrick Tierney

241 Mirada Rd, HVIB



Midcoast Community Council
An elected Advisory Council to the San Mateo County Board of Supervisors
representing Montara, Moss Beach, El Granada, Princeton, and Miramar
PO Box 248, Moss Beach, CA 94038-0248 | midcoastcommunitycouncil.org

Michelle Weil | Claire Toutant | Len Erickson | Dave Olson | Gregg Dieguez | Jill Grant | Dan Haggerty

Chair Vice-Chair Secretary Treasurer
Date: February 10, 2021
To: Jim Porter, Director, Department of Public Works
Cc: Supervisor Don Horsley,

Erik Martinez, California Coastal Commission Staff
From: Midcoast Community Council

Subject: Updated MCC Position on the Mirada Road Pedestrian Bridge Replacement
and Bank Stabilization Project (The Project)

On October 28, 2020, the Midcoast Community Council sent a letter requesting that the
pedestrian bridge replacement over Arroyo de en Medio creek be built inland, rather than
rebuilt at the current location. After further considering the Project, the MCC presents this
letter supporting, with specific qualifications, the construction of a replacement bridge in the
current location.

Since October, the MCC has done the following:

e Reviewed the time and cost of identifying a new location for the bridge, designing and
permitting the new bridge location, addressing legal challenges to this action and
completing the build (a minimum of three years and most likely several more).

e Recognized the impact of a relocation of the Coastal Trail on residents of this section
of Miramar via on-site inspections and continued community feedback.

e Observed the impact of the current emergency detour of the Coastal Trail to/from SR1
and considered the safety risk of keeping this detour in place for several years.

e Reviewed the history of coastal erosion impacts in Half Moon Bay since the harbor
jetty was built in 1959 and the history of continuing efforts to address this erosion, as
well as the impact of sea level rise and climate change.

The MCC has commented on technical and environmental concerns which we feel should be
recognized and addressed. With CCC's approval of the CDP, the MCC will support the
proposed bridge replacement at its current location.



Regardless of which decision is made by the CCC, the MCC agrees with many sources who
feel the bridge in this location will not survive past 2040, and requests the following measures
be taken.

e Long-term planning for this section of the Miramar coast including an inland relocation
of the pedestrian bridge, including purchasing property, or securing any necessary
easements, to avoid another ‘emergency’ situation where this section of the Coastal
Trail is closed when the currently proposed bridge and/or the roads and bluffs become
untenable for public use.

e The Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District, an independent government agency
known as OneShoreline.org, is the lead agency researching Coastal Erosion on the
San Mateo Coast. It is establishing an erosion study that extends from Pillar Point
Harbor, north to Maverick’s Beach and south to Surfers’ Beach. We request that
OneShoreline’s evaluations extend south at least as far as Medio Creek and
preferably to Roosevelt Beach.

MIDCOAST COMMUNITY COUNCIL
s/Michelle Weil, Chair
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Martinez, Erik@Coastal

From: dave krasowski <dave.krasowski@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, February 10, 2021 4:30 PM

To: Martinez, Erik@Coastal

Subject: Fwd: Coastal Trail Bridge

Mr Martinez

Please see the message below which was sent today to the Midcoast Community Council in support of rebuilding the
Mirada Road Pedestrian Bridge in the current location

Dave Krasowski
468 Alameda Ave.
Half Moon Bay, Ca. 94019

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Don Horsley <dhorsley@smcgov.org>
Date: Wed, Feb 10, 2021 at 4:13 PM

Subject: RE: Coastal Trail Bridge

To: dave krasowski <dave.krasowski@gmail.com>

| do support the project of rebuilding in the current location. The MCC has engaged with Coastal Commission staff on
this and my advice is that you should engage with them as well. The staff person at the Coastal Commission is Erik
Martinez and his email is Erik.martinez@coastal .ca.gov.

From: dave krasowski <dave.krasowski@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, February 10, 2021 2:39 PM

To: midcoastcommunitycouncil@gmail.com; Len Erickson <lenericksonmcc@gmail.com>; Michelle Weil
<michelleweilmcc@gmail.com>; Claire Toutant <midcoast.claire@gmail.com>; Dave Olson <daveolsonmcc@gmail.com>;
Cc: Jennifer Almodova <jennifer.almodova@gmail.com>; MCCGreggD@gmail.com; JillGrant.MidcoastCC@gmail.com;
midcoastdan@gmail.com; Don Horsley <dhorsley@smcgov.org>

Subject: Coastal Trail Bridge

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of San Mateo County. Unless you recognize the sender's email address and know
the content is safe, do not click links, open attachments or reply.



My wife, Jennifer Roberts, and I live at 468 Alameda Ave. in Miramar. We support rebuilding of the Coastal
Trail bridge in its present location. We have many reasons for this position :

Rebuilding of the bridge in its present location will restore this important community resource most

quickly. Preliminary design and studies have been done, application for the Coastal Development permit has
been made and the County recently released an Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration for the

project. Relocation of the bridge inland would require all of these steps to be re-done and delay the opening of
a new bridge by years.

Studies by CSW/ ST2 have shown that replacing the bridge in its present location will be less costly than
building a bridge at an inland location.

Relocation of the bridge to an inland location will require the taking of private property, substantial
improvements to the existing infrastructure on Mirada, Alameda and Medio Avenues and have significant
impacts to the riparian habitat at the creek.

The Miramar community has presented a petition to MCC with over 1000 local residents and visitors supporting
the replacement of the bridge in its present location.

Thank you

Dave Krasowski

Jennifer Roberts



Martinez, Erik@Coastal

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Follow Up Flag:
Flag Status:

Lisa Ketcham <lisa.ketcham@comcast.net>

Monday, February 8, 2021 6:14 PM

Martinez, Erik@Coastal

Fwd: Mirada Rd Replacement Bridge (2/9/21 ) Item 24

Follow up
Flagged

Begin forwarded message:

From: Lisa Ketcham <lisa.ketcham@comcast.net>

Subject: Mirada Rd Replacement Bridge (2/9/21 ) Item 24

Date: February 8, 2021 at 8:29:51 AM PST

To: David Canepa <dcanepa@smcgov.org>, Carole Groom <CGroom@smcgov.org>, Don
Horsley <dhorsley@smcgov.org>, Dave Pine <DPine@smcgov.org>, Warren Slocum

<wslocum@smcgov.org>

Cc: MCC <midcoastcommunitycouncil@gmail.com>, Jim Porter <jporter@smcgov.org>

Dear President and Members of the Board:

It is a disturbing mystery why the Mirada Rd Bridge replacement project was kept out of public view
until the bridge was abruptly closed last July. Even then, the work product to date was not made
available to the public until obtained from Coastal Commission staff last October, a full year after the
Alternatives Analysis was completed with no public review.

Background in the 2/9/21 staff report finally reveals how the project initiation was missed by the public,
due to inadequate wording for the Board's 11/13/18 agenda item (attached) which does not mention

the bridge.

30. dopt a resolution authorizing an agreement with Parisi CSW Design Group for a
aximum amount of $336,241, for the term of November 13, 2018 through November 12,

21.

It is sad and frustrating that the public did not have the opportunity to participate in a timely way on a
project of such importance to the community, until two years into the process, it was apparently too
late to consider alternatives.

Sincerely,
Lisa Ketcham



Martinez, Erik@Coastal

From: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal

Sent: Monday, February 1, 2021 10:09 AM
To: Josh Simpson

Cc: Martinez, Erik@Coastal

Subject: RE: Coastal trail bridge

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Hello Josh,

Thanks for the comments and heads up. | will forward this onto our planner working on the item (Erik Martinez). Would
be best if comments went to him. He is cced here.

Thanks,

Jeannine

From: Josh Simpson <josh@jrsimpson.com>

Sent: Monday, February 1, 2021 6:38 AM

To: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal <Jeannine.Manna@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Coastal trail bridge

Hi Jeannine - Someone kindly put up this sandwich board near the pedestrian bridge on the Coastal trail just south of
Miramar - you can see the Navy’s “golf ball” radar thing for reference. My wife and | have lived on the coast here for 10
years. We have used the trail on a near daily basis that entire time. The Coastal Trail is a treasure, and one of the nicest
public assets in the entire Coastside area. | was greatly saddened to see it fall into disrepair and be closed. | was
astonished to hear that there is actually not a firm commitment to its immediate repair and/or replacement. This
should be a public policy “gimme”. The bridge allows a continuous experience of the beach and coastal area that is
accessible to virtually everyone, and it is used by literally thousands of people. The existing detour to Highway 1 is
noxious, albeit necessary in the meantime.....no one walks the coastal trail so they can walk beside cars moving at near-
freeway speeds. As an existing infrastructure component, repair or replacement of the bridge should be VASTLY simpler
than pursing any other solutions to re-linking the broken halves of the coastal trail. And NO alternative solution to
bridge repair or replacement could offer what the bridge offers.....a continuous experience of the fabulous views
afforded by the trail, and a direct visual connection to the beach, which is enshrined in California’s constitution.

| own 6.5 acres of land at the Southwest corner of Highway 1 and Highway 92 in Half Moon Bay, and over a tenth of a
mile of the coastal trail runs across the entire southerly portion of my land adjacent to Pilarcitos Creek, so | feel uniquely
invested in maintaining the integrity of the trail. Please fix or replace the bridge, and please do it soon. It is missed by
so many of us. Thanks.

Regards,

Josh Simpson

P.O. Box 40

El Granada, CA 94018

Cell: 831-334-3513

PS: Whoever put up the sandwich board mis-spelled your email address. They accidentally wrote it with only one “n” in
your last name. My guess is many people will be sending emails to nowhere, but it doesn’t mean people won’t be trying
to reach you.






Martinez, Erik@Coastal

From: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal

Sent: Monday, January 25, 2021 2:59 PM

To: Martinez, Erik@Coastal

Cc: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

Subject: FW: Support for Mirada Road pedestrian bridge replacement

FYI for the file.

From: Allison Berke <allyberke @gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, January 20, 2021 5:43 PM

To: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal <Jeannine.Manna@coastal.ca.gov>; midcoastcommunitycouncil@gmail.com;
klisaj@smcgov.org

Subject: Support for Mirada Road pedestrian bridge replacement

Hi,

| saw a sign on the fence closing off the Mirada Road bridge indicating that you're interested in community support for
the bridge replacement, and | am very much in support of replacing the bridge! I'm a homeowner in Half Moon Bay, and
| run on the coastal trail almost every day; the bridge helps connect the trail all the way to Pillar Point harbor, and is very
useful for walking to Miramar Beach restaurant, too. | hope it'll be replaced!

Thank you,

Allison



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
Date: January 13, 2021
To: Theresa Engle, SMC DPW Resource Specialist
Cc: Supervisor Don Horsley,

Jim Porter, Director, Department of Public Works
Erik Martinez, California Coastal Commission Staff
From: Midcoast Community Council

Subject: Comments: Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration for Mirada Road
Pedestrian Bridge Replacement and Bank Stabilization Project (NegDec)

Overall Considerations

Following fast response actions in the Medio Creek area addressed with emergency CDPs,
San Mateo County (SMC), in June, 2020, submitted to the California Coastal Commission
(CCC) a CDP request for the Medio Bridge Replacement project (“the Project”). As stated in
the background section of the NegDec, the Project is only the initial step in a larger
framework:

The County has evaluated its portion of Mirada Road immediately north of the
proposed project area and it appears that a long-term project will be necessary to
address coastal erosion along Mirada Road. County funding has not been allocated to
address these improvements, which have been identified as sheet pile walls from
Magellan Avenue to Medio Avenue to protect the roadway. ... The County anticipates
that a long-term project to address coastal erosion along Mirada Road will not be
constructed before 2021/2022.

With this larger framework in mind, these comments on the NegDec for the CDP recognize
that the “sheet pile wall” referred to in the above paragraph is an approach to coastal
protection that is consistent with the armoring proposed for this Project. It is important to
understand the fuller plans for this stretch of coast in order to conduct a thorough assessment
of the impact of the armoring proposed for this bridge replacement Project over the next 20
years.



While climate change and coastal erosion are important factors currently impacting this area,
the impact of the Harbor Jetty, first deployed in Pillar Point Harbor in 1959, has been a key
factor driving coastal erosion in this part of Half Moon Bay.

The proposed Project has strong support from many in the Miramar community, protects road
access to several properties and provides an efficient and scenic California Coastal Trail
route by the bay that has been extremely popular with visitors as well as residents.

The NegDec provides a static description of the armoring proposed, a composite of shotcrete
and RSP on the shoreline cliff and creek walls, but it does not provide an assessment of
coastal erosion and sand patterns over the next 20 years and beyond. (Note: There is a 2018
study for Mirada Road armoring.) On January 20, the MCC expects to receive a draft of
Connect the Coastside with a plan framework to address coastal trails and roads impacted by
the shoreline for the communities of El Granada and Miramar for the next 20 years. The MCC
would like to work with both San Mateo County and support from the CCC to bring further
information on these factors to a meeting in early February.

The MCC comments on the NegDec document are below.
Environment Evaluation Comments
A. Aesthetics

The combination of Shotcrete and RSP creates a view that will vary considerably by season
which is acknowledged. There are simulations which show the appearance when the sand is
at a high level (2 feet visible), but no simulations show the appearance when the full RSP
is visible which is a concern to assess the aesthetics of the view and the actual extent of
the RSP base. Further, it can be expected that over time RSP will spread out from their initial
position below the shotcrete, and will be moved away from the wall by storm waves.

We therefore think that A.1.a,b, and ¢ should be Significant impact, rather than Insignificant.
G. Geology and Soils

The Project cannot be approved without an agreed analysis of the sand movement attendant
to the project site. The statement on page 48, item b) that: “The County and City of Half Moon
Bay will work with the CCC to determine if a net sand loss may be balanced by the overall
benefits of the project to existing coastal resources and retain and restore the connectivity of
the coastal trail over Medio de Arroyo” cannot be left as an item to be determined. It must be
evaluated and finalized in this document or in attachment from an expert party in order for a
Negative Declaration to be valid. Sand Analysis of Coastal Beach Sand projects is out of date
and should be reviewed. Analysis of deposition of materials brought to the coast by Medio
Creek should be considered. The SMC Harbor District will conduct a sand replenishment
project, Surfers Beach Sand Replenishment Project and it should be referenced. The
liquefaction analysis mentioned on pages 47-8 is omitted from the NegDec.

We therefore think that G.7.b should be Significant impact, rather than insignificant.
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P. Recreation

The ramp proposed for providing heavy equipment access to the beach will prevent beach
access using the informal trail in the same location, during the construction period.
Construction will also prevent use of the well-used section of the beach adjacent to the
existing bridge. When the Project is completed there will be no formal trail to the beach and
informal access will be impossible where there is shotcrete without adding a staircase to the
beach.

We therefore think that the Recreation impact is Significant, rather than insignificant.
Q. Transportation

Providing coastal trail continuity has resulted in a detour to the Medio Creek area of SR1,
which is an inconvenience to trail users and a safety hazard for trail users and residents
because of the mix-mode traffic that results. We have received complaints of near accidents
from residents.

We therefore think that Q.17.a should at least require additional mitigation; as is, the impact
of the preliminary detour and the project is Significant.

S. Utilities and Service Systems

All utility districts are working to be ready for cut over to the bridge in summer, although the
NegDec does not mention this (a surprising omission). In particular, GCSD has plans to
abandon their sewer lines crossing Medio Creek. This area should be monitored closely.

We agree that utility impact is less than significant.

U. Mandatory Findings of Significance
Re-stating the points made in the opening paragraphs:

The overall assessment of erosion at creek and on the adjacent shoreline is not adequately
addressed. Until this consideration is added to the NegDec, this must be considered a
Significant impact, precluding CCC approval of the Project.

Additionally, as stated above, the MCC believes that there are significant impacts from this
project on Aesthetics, Geology, and Recreation.

MIDCOAST COMMUNITY COUNCIL
s/Michelle Weil, Chair
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SUMMARY OF REASONS TO REPLACE MEDIO CREEK COASTAL TRAIL BRIDGE AT CURRENT LOCATION

Prepared By Mirada Residents, as of 12/13/20

1. The Medio Creek Coastal Trail Bridge is an incredibly important asset of this community for
transportation and area tourism and the closure has hurt tourism and neighborhood cohesion.

(0]

(0]

According to the County, this section of trail hosted peak use of over 1,400 walkers and
bicyclists per day in 2019.

The Miramar neighborhood residents heartily welcome the use of the Coastal Trail by all
locals and tourists alike.

The trail serves as a safe transportation route for school children, work and shopping
bicycle commuting by residents, and leisure travel by an increasing number of visitors.
Many walkers and bicyclists now turn around at the closed bridge and do not continue
on the trail detour.

Neighbors on each side of the creek do not see each other as often (a loss of
neighborhood cohesion) because quick trips are no longer possible.

2. Replacing Medio Creek Bridge at its current location (RMCB) is the quickest way to open the
coastal trail and improve coastal access without the lengthy detour.

(o}

o
(o}

With California Coastal Commission (CCC) approval, bridge construction would begin in
summer 2021.

An Alameda route would take 5-10 years longer due to redesign and starting permitting
Building a new pedestrian bridge over Medio Creek just west of Hwy 1 would take 5-10
years for permitting and construction.

3. RMCB is also the least expensive alternative, except for the current detour, to replace that
section of the Coastal Trail in the short and long term.

(o}

(o}

According to the County, RMCB is the least costly of all bridge replacement alternatives
presented

Redesign, new permitting, and land acquisition cost will be significant for other
alternatives

Inflation will increase costs substantially, if bridge replacement is delayed for 5-10 years
The financial loss of houses and businesses at the mouth of Medio Creek is a significant
cost of not RMCB.

The cost of quick replacement of the bridge amortized over its projected 40 year life
span is substantially less than a delayed and more expensive bridge at the other
locations, even if a new bridge would be needed in the future.

There are financial benefits in having the Coastal Trail reopened quickly for tourism,
neighborhood cohesion and neighborhood house values.

4. All parties agree replacing Medio Creek bridge in its current location (RMCB) is feasible from an
engineering perspective

(0]

Unless and until a thorough vetting and analysis by expert consultants reveals that it is
infeasible, we believe replacement of the bridge where it currently exists is the best
alternative



Three different engineering studies (CSW Stuber Mirada Road Project Benefits and Alternatives
Analysis (October 2019), PARIKH's Geotechnical Design Recommendations (January 2020) and
the Count Department of Public Works submission (June 3, 2020)) state the bluff stabilization
proposed at the mouth of Medio Creek will be effective.
0 Incontrast are the views expressed by some MCC members, which are based on
observations without any engineering support.
0 There are successful examples in NorCal of the type of coastal bluff stabilization
proposed here

RMCB is simply a maintenance issue, while building a bridge elsewhere is a significant
new project requiring more analysis and starting of new regulatory applications.

O Along Alameda Ave the conforming streets would have to be constructed, including
widening, pavement, lighting, drainage, etc. All of this would greatly change the area
character and have to pass environmental review.

0 The Medio Creek riparian corridor is a protected area and is home to wildlife species of
special concern. An Alameda bridge might have additional costs, be delayed or
prohibited by wildlife concerns.

0 Ohlone Indians were known to reside along Medio Creek, and extensive pre-
construction surveys of an Alameda bridge would be required, and if remains were
found during foundation digs it would force further delays.

Reliance for access to the Coastal Trail on the current detour route along Mirada and Miramar
Roads, Highway 1 and Medio Ave. poses an increased public safety hazard.
0 Mirada and Miramar roads are very narrow, congested with poor sight-line distances.
0 The new mixing of Coastal Trail users and resident and visitor auto traffic on the detour
along north Mirada and Miramar roads has decreased safety and led to accidents.

The Miramar community is united to replace the bridge in its current location (See attached
signed petitions).

0 An Alameda route would completely change the character of the neighborhood, from
eminent domain used to take private land, cutting people’s property by 10-25%,
sidewalks, noise all day, trash, increased theft.

0 Taking private property is only legal where it's necessary. Even MCC agrees RMCG in situ
is feasible, so eminent domain does not seem appropriate.

0 Affected property owners along Alameda and Mirada Roads (all of whom are signatories
on the attached petition) have indicated they would be unwillingly sell their property or
grant easements (regardless of compensation), at least unless and until other promising
options are evaluated and found to be wanting. The County correctly opines that
resolving those disputes might take years

O Residents in the community will keep challenging the Alameda route until all avenues —
legal and otherwise — are exhausted.

9. An aluminum bridge will last 40 years, according to the October 2019 CSW Engineering Analysis.

Even if a new Medio Creek bridge had to be replaced in 20-40 years it is still cost effective versus
waiting 5-10 years for a bridge at another interior site.



10. Section 30235 of the Coastal Act includes language allowing improvements to protect coastal-
dependent uses and existing structures. We believe that the Mirada Road pedestrian bridge
meets this criterion.

0 RMCB will stabilize the Medio Creek mouth area and protect houses and a business
0 In 30 years no real erosion along north Mirada Road, except where there is no armoring.

11. The October 28 Midcoast Community Council (MCC) letter to the California Coastal Commission
(CCC) was premature because they did not give reasonable notice and seek feedback from those
who would be most immediately and directly impacted by the contents of the letter, the
residents of Miramar.

0 Most of the 46 persons who signed the Nov.1 petition were not even aware MCC was
considering to not recommend replacing the bridge.
0 They were not aware of the October 28 MCC meeting or its agenda.

12. Residents are particularly concerned with statements made and positions taken at the MCC
meeting of October 28.

0 First, most of the members echoed the assertion that in the proposed letter they were
considering it did not advocate for any particular solution but instead simply raised
several alternatives.

0 This, despite the fact that the letter they were considering (and ultimately sent out)
expressly advocated for an “inland” route.

0 We recommend the MCC retract the Oct. 28 letter and modify it, based on new
information and on Miramar resident feedback.

13. Medio Creek bridge affects all of Mirada Road and the County and City cannot try to piece-meal
the issues. The County, City, State Parks, and the Harbor District need a plan, including safe
beach assess points, roads, parking, restrooms, trash collection, etc., for all of Mirada Road and
the coastal trail that traverses it.

O RMCB now will give time to develop a comprehensive plan for the Mirada Road and
Coastal Trail corridor, north, south and east of the bridge. This plan should include a
thorough public discussion of alternative long-term trail alignments, access, managed
retreat, parking, restrooms and impacts to residences and businesses

14. Sand erosion at the bridge foundation, to some extent, is man-caused due to harbor
construction stopping sand replenishment, so a man-made bluff stabilization is appropriate

0 Arecent Army Corps of Engineers study confirmed the harbor has hurt sand deposition.

0 The transfer of sand from dredging of the harbor and placing it on the Surfers Beach -
Miramar Beach area would potentially replenish the beach and slow erosion of the
bluffs near bridge.

0 Planting of native vegetation and use of natural materials inside the mouth of Medio
Creek could reduce erosion there.

15. The bridge area is a relatively small space/pocket which is surrounded by large areas of rip rap.
The proposed armoring and bluff stabilization would have very little or no impact on sand
transfer to the south.



Martinez, Erik@Coastal

From: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal

Sent: Monday, January 11, 2021 4:54 PM

To: Martinez, Erik@Coastal

Cc: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

Subject: FW: Medio Creek Coastal Trail Bridge

Attachments: INFO.doc; Factsheet of Reason to Replace Medio Bridge -Final 12-14-20p.pdf
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

From: Michael Powers <michaelpowers@wildinspirit.com>

Sent: Monday, January 11, 2021 9:16 AM

To: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal <Jeannine.Manna@coastal.ca.gov>; midcoastcommuniitycouncil@gmail.com
Cc: Tierney Patrick. Robin <adrift650@comcast.net>; Miramar Home <nanivenegas@gmail.com>

Subject: Medio Creek Coastal Trail Bridge



THE STORM SURF YESTERDAY, AS PHOTOGRAPHED FROM MIRAMAR BEACH

Dear Coastal Commission, Midcoast Council, & Miramar Beach neighbors,

| am writing to strongly encourage and endorse the replacement of the Medio Creek Bridge in its present location on
Mirada Road.

As our neighbor Patrick Tierney points outs in his in his well-thought-out SUMMARY OF REASONS TO REPLACE MEDIO
CREEK COASTAL TRAIL BRIDGE AT CURRENT LOCATION — the bridge in its present location is an incredible important
asset to the larger community.

In addition, relocating the Coastal Trail inland would essentially be abandoning Mirada Road as it runs along Miramar
Beach — one of the very few recreational & commercial stretches of ocean frontage existing in all of San Mateo
County. This would be a terrible and unnecessary loss for all of us who live here on the coast, and for the many
thousands of people how come to visit every year.

So thank you all very much for your kind consideration of this urgent plea from many of us who love Miramar Beach — to
help us save and protect it for all of us, and for further generations.

Sincerely, Michael Powers



Here is some information about Miramar Beach that | put together:

Here again is Pat Tierney’s SUMMARY, for those of you who may not have seen it:

Michael Powers

Adventure Photojournalism & Film
(650) 400-5712
michaelpowers@wildinspirit.com

www.wildinspirit.com
One Mirada Road
Half Moon Bay, CA 94019 U.S.A.




November 18, 2020

San Mateo County Department of Public Works

555 County Center, 5 FI.

Redwood City, Ca. 94063-1665

Attn: Julie Casagrande (jcasagrande@smcgov.org)
Kryzsztof Lisaj (klisaj@smcgov.org)
DPW Mirada@smcgov.org

VIA ELECTRONIC, OVERNIGHT AND CERTIFIED U.S. MAIL

Re: Mirada Rd/Medio Creek Bridge Replacement
Dear Julie and Kryzsztof,

We are homeowners in the coastal community of Miramar, San Mateo County. We write to underscore
— as expressed in our recent Petition to the County — our deep concern over recent efforts by the
MidCoast Community Council (“MCC”) to advocate for re-location of the Coastal Trail along Alameda
Avenue.! While we appreciate your correspondence of September 25, 2020 assuring Mr. Miller that
there was no current proposal to re-locate the trail, the MCC appears to have a different agenda. We
understand that the MCC has sent a letter to you purporting to represent the “community” interest in
seeing the trail re-located along Alameda. Please understand that any such posture of the MCC does not
reflect the current position of the community most involved -- virtually every home along the purported
re-location route and near the historic route of the trail, stretching from Cortez Avenue north of Medio
Avenue to 2™ Ave. to the east, to Mirada Road and 1°t Ave. on the west and south and along the entire
length of the proposed Alameda/Mirada relocation route. Most of us have been in our current homes
for twenty, thirty to more than sixty years and respectfully ask that our views be carefully weighed
before such a dramatic change is made to resources as important as the Coastal Trail and the
surrounding neighborhoods.

To be clear, while we heartily welcome the use of the Coastal Trail by all locals and tourists alike
(particularly in the age of Covid, where everyone needs access to safe and healthy outdoor access), we
are not in agreement with such a re-location, at least not until other alternatives are thoroughly
considered. In the meantime, given the urgency of re-connecting the trail, we believe at least a
temporary bridge configuration over the mouth of the creek is the best immediate alternative.

As an initial matter, notwithstanding that the County apparently commissioned a study (including
schematics of drastic Alameda road widening, condemnation of our property, etc.) published last fall

! The undersigned represents just a sub-set of the signatories to the Petition (which currently includes 46 unique
signatories representing 30 homes), as we have not been able yet to reach the balance of the Petition signatories
for this letter. Please rest assured that the ultimate universe of signatories to both the Petition and this letter will
grow and coalesce if and when we need to pursue this further.

1



proposing this configuration as a possible alternative (which we were not aware of until recently), at no
point has anyone (the MCC, the County, or anyone else) ever reached out to us for our input. This,
notwithstanding that the proposed re-routing would shift the coastal trail from the coast to a
neighborhood location and dramatically alter our immediate neighborhood, drawing thousands of
travelers a day just feet from our front doors. We cannot overstate how upsetting this lack of notice has
been for us. Again, if after full vetting this is deemed the only possible, reasonable alternative, we will
not stand in the way of ensuring public enjoyment of the Coast from our front yards. At this point,
however, the Alameda configuration seems to be far from the most reasonable alternative.

We are particularly concerned with statements made and positions taken at the MCC meeting of
October 28. First, in an apparent effort to deflect from our concerns, most of the members echoed the
assertion that the proposed letter they were considering did not advocate for any particular solution but
instead simply raised several alternatives. This, despite the fact that the letter they were considering
(and ultimately sent out) expressly advocated for an “inland” route and, more specifically, their favored
Alameda Avenue location. The problem with this (aside from consistency with the truth) is that it
demonstrates that the MCC has formed a position prematurely, without expert/consulting analysis of
the various alternatives. Second, several members simply asserted that “it’s late in the evening” and
that they would simply go along with Mr. Olsen’s desire to drive the letter through. This is no way to
build community consensus on such a critical issue. In short, the MCC letter is directly at odds with the
immediate community’s position. Third, the County expressly asked the MCC to withhold taking a
position (and making that position known to the CCC) until the Commissioners and staff could meet with
the community. The MCC’s response was to ignore that request (and ignore the entire Miramar
community’s position) and immediately send out its contrary position letter.

As to the substance of the re-location proposal, we object for the following reasons (which are inter-
related but independent), among others:

1. Timeliness

No one disagrees that the Coastal Trail bridge is an incredibly important asset of this community
(as Mr. Miller related in prior correspondence, many of our children (long- since grown now)
learned to ride bikes on the trail and the trail serves both tourists and local commute traffic
alike) and that the current re-route on, and re-striping of, Highway 1 is (at least in its current
form) far from ideal. Rather, the trail needs to be fully re-connected as soon as possible. Our
understanding is that the bridge can be replaced in its current configuration by next summer. If,
on the other hand, the trail is to be routed along Alameda, as set forth below the delays would
be extreme, with no guarantee that it would ever be finally approved

2. Alternatives

Last fall San Mateo County’s consulting engineers, CSW Stuber, prepared its Mirada Road
Project Benefits and Alternatives Analysis, setting forth a number of alternatives, from no action
to “managed retreat” (including trail relocation to Alameda Avenue) to replacement of the
bridge at its current alignment (CSW Stuber’s “Alternative 4”). Unless and until a thorough



vetting and analysis by expert consultants reveals that it is infeasible, we believe replacement of
the bridge where it currently exists is the best alternative. While we readily agree that the
mouth of the creek is eroding, we believe there may be a fundamental misunderstanding as to
the cause — a misunderstanding that affects all coastal property in Miramar and the thousands
of tourists (exponentially expanded in the era of Covid) and locals that enjoy beach access from
the jetty south for a number of miles. The MCC'’s recent meeting presented sea level rise as the
culprit, all but ignoring the elephant in the sand — the Army Corps’ concession that its outer
harbor breakwater has caused the problem. If one accepts that sea level rise is the primary
culprit, it is easy to say “There’s nothing that can be done —the erosion is inevitable so we need
to abandon the mouth of the creek, all of Mirada Road, the entire Coastal Trail downto ...
Dunes Beach? Roosevelt Beach? ” If, on the other hand, the main culprit (at least along Miramar
beach) is the breakwater, it is incumbent upon the community, the state and the federal
government to seriously consider responding to the actual cause. The rationale for “managed
retreat” — that erosion is inevitable due to sea level rise — may not tell the entire (or even a
significant portion of) the story in Miramar and should not be applied overbroadly to the unique
circumstances present along the local shore. In short, any antipathy to “man-made” solutions
must yield where the cause of the problem is man-made (the breakwater) itself, in the first
instance.

What does this mean for the Medio bridge? If Mirada Road can be saved, so, too, can the
location of the bridge at the mouth of the creek. (Indeed, it is likely that the highway near
Surfers Beach and all of Mirada Road will be impacted long before a replacement bridge
becomes obsolete.) There can be no real debate that having the Coastal Trail along the coast —
and not inland through neighborhoods — is preferred. We have seen opinions that a new bridge
at the mouth may last 20-40 years. Even if that time is halved, ten or twenty years gives all
stakeholders ample time to consider the much larger -- but fundamentally interconnected —
issue of how to address the ultimate cause at its root. It would be a shame if the Coastal Trail is
re-routed inland only several years later to arrive at a solution that protects the area where the
trail had been.

Alternative 4 by CSW Stuber was based on comparisons of the cost of each alternative, the
impacts to the surrounding areas of each alternative and the time necessary for implementation
of each alternative.

We understand that coastal armoring is a controversial issue and is generally discouraged by the
Coastal Commission, but the Coastal Act includes language allowing improvements to protect
coastal-dependent uses and existing structures. We believe that the Mirada Road pedestrian
bridge meets this criteria:



If armoring, etc. is permitted even where it alters “natural shoreline processes,” it certainly is
permitted where it alters man-made shoreline processes.

We also believe that timeliness in replacement of the bridge is an important consideration. The
bridge has been closed since July, 2020, denying the public access to this portion of the coastal
trail. In the meantime, access is being provided via a bypass along Highway 1 which is certainly
not ideal and represents not only a distraction for drivers but exposure of walkers and bikers to
heavy traffic along the bypass. Limiting the duration of this bypass is an important
consideration in this matter.

In its application for a Coastal Development permit from June of 2020, the DPW proposed that
the work would be conducted in two phases of 45 working days (phase 1) plus 40 working days
(phase 1l). DPW notes that phase | work would only be conducted during low tide, which would
extend the overall time required for the work. In its presentation to the Half Moon Bay City
Council, DPW stated that the construction period was expected to be at least four months.
DPW anticipated that permits would be obtained in April, 2021. If work were to start
immediately after permits were issued, completion could be expected by July 2021.

Even in this best case, with the bridge replaced in its current location, the Mirada Road coastal
bridge will have been closed for a year. As set forth below and in its Analysis, CSW Stuber’s
Alternative #2 (Alameda relocation), on the other hand, would require additional environmental
review, taking of private property, likely litigation and the probability of a longer construction
period, dramatically increasing the duration of the already-deficient detour.

Environmental Issues

The Arroyo de Medio is a riparian corridor. We have seen coyotes and deer come down
Alameda using the creek as a corridor and understand mountain lions have as well and that the
creek supports raptors and other fauna. We also understand that the creek supports red-legged
frogs and that in the past, the Federal Register identified the creek as trout spawning habitat.
The creek is otherwise largely inaccessible, due to the depth/90-degree drop of the banks and
heavy undergrowth.

While some modest amount of “updated” environmental review may be required to install the
replacement bridge at the mouth of the creek, ripping up the creek at Alameda for abutments,
etc. would make that review pale in comparison.



We also question whether the Alameda proposal would meet less tangible temporary and
permanent environmental impact concerns such as property ingress/egress, parking, safety,
noise, trash, human waste, etc. The plan from last fall also recognized that conforming streets
would have to be constructed, including proper pavement, lighting, drainage, etc. All of this
would have to pass environmental review.

Finally, each of us that built our homes over the last 20-25 years in Miramar was required to
undertake an archeological study since this area was historically a home to the Ohlone Indians.
(In some instances (across Medio), remains were found during foundation digs that further
delayed construction.) Such a study will be required along Alameda, at the bridge abutments,
etc. resulting in further delay.

Eminent Domain/Condemnation

As the County has already recognized, regardless of the exact configuration of an Alameda
bridge crossing, some amount of private property would have to be taken. We strongly suspect
that none of the affected property owners (all of whom are signatories on the attached Petition)
would willingly give up their property (regardless of compensation), at least unless and until
other promising options are evaluated and found to be wanting. The County correctly opines
that resolving those disputes would take a number of years.

Moreover, we believe the issue of eminent domain is inextricably linked to the alternatives
above. Needless to say, before taking our property, it will have to be shown that such a taking is
necessary. Regardless of any balancing test used, the mere fact that the bridge can be rebuilt in
place runs counter to the rationale of eminent domain in the first instance.

And to be clear, even the MCC recognizes that the current location may well work. At the Oct.

28 meeting, Mr. Olsen expressly recognized a second alternative of dropping in a longer bridge,
over the mouth of the creek, that would reduce (if not eliminate) any perceived problems with

armoring the abutments. (Yet the MCC nonetheless soldiered on and sent their inland re-route
demand to the County and Coastal Commission.)

Character of the Neighborhood/Trail Intersection

Comments were made at a prior MCC meeting that the Coastal Trail typically already goes
through neighborhoods. This is not true, for virtually the entire Coast south of the jetty. While it
is true that the trail fronts — at some distance — several homes on one side, at no point does it
plow through neighborhoods with homes on each side of the route. It is simply not a
“neighborhood” trail but a coastal trail. This re-routing would be the first and only time the trail
would be pushed past long-standing inland homes, a mere ten feet from family windows and
immediately abutting driveways, and therefore like nothing else on the Coast. This would both
(1) significantly detract from the “coastal” experience of trail travelers and (2) profoundly
impact the safety and quiet enjoyment of the residents alike.



Consequence of Re-routing Trail Through Neighborhoods

More specifically, there is a clear, natural and negative consequence to abandoning the coastal
nature of the trail and running it through neighborhoods instead — the impacts on those
neighborhoods. Many of us have been in our current homes for 20-40 years (some dating to the
1950’s). When we moved here, Alameda was a cul-de-sac on both ends. Because of the dis-
location of Alameda Avenue on the two ends and the homes on either side, no one anticipated
that the street — including any new pedestrian bridge -- would be extended over the creek;
extending Alameda Avenue was never possible. So it is not sufficient to say, “Well, you should
have anticipated a major thoroughfare through your neighborhood.”

Particularly since a re-routing through neighborhoods would be a fundamental exception to the
nature of the “coastal” trail, any Environmental Impact Study/Environmental Impact Review
would necessarily consider impacts such as noise, traffic, safety, light, refuse, etc. caused by
several thousand daily travelers. Those impacts were already considered (and necessarily
accepted) decades ago for the existing trail location over the bridge. On the other hand, any trail
along Alameda and Mirada would place it within a matter of a few feet from neighboring
driveways, front and side doors, windows and parking places.?

The safety impacts to travelers and residents alike of re-routing along Alameda and Mirada
cannot be overstated. The neighborhood is already heavily impacted by local parked cars. Those
cars effectively block vantage points as cars enter and exit driveways. Many of those driveways
are sub-standard in length and width to begin with. Adding dedicated trail easements along the
road means that cars will have to park on the trail. How many bikers, runners, rollerbladers,
one-wheels, baby strollers, local and traversing dogs etc. will be hit by cars trying to access view-
blocked driveways or pulling out across the trail to access Alameda (or Mirada)? How fast are
bikers, rollerbladers, etc. going to be going through the serpentine bridge alignment and then
careening down Alameda with no vision? Is the County going to install speed signs for the trial?
And then overhead lights? And speed bumps? A round-a-bout? Parking by permit only? None of
these mitigation efforts likely will work, while upending the neighborhood. In short, forcing a
trail through Alameda and Mirada is forcing a square peg into a round hole.

With respect to the “thousands” of daily travelers: This is not hyperbole. While last year’s
County study spoke in terms of “nearly 1,100 trail travelers, that was BEFORE Covid. Each of us
has noticed an enormous increase in pedestrian/bicycle activity along Medio Avenue and
Mirada Road. Indeed, every day 50-100 people walk and bike down Alameda searching for “a
way over” the creek; that, even with signs alerting them to the highway detour. And once Covid
is “over,” no one believes the Coast will magically revert to the sleepy enclave it was decades
ago; rather, having “discovered” the wonderful Coastside, visitors will keep coming (like remote

2 Another aspect of Miramar’s unique character is that many of the lots were not laid out in standard
configurations. This is particularly true along Alameda Avenue, where the County decades ago converted existing
“front” yards to side yards and vice-versa, resulting in already diminished set-backs to Alameda. See, e.g., 438
Alameda (north of the creek) and 462 Alameda (south of the creek).
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working/learning, a fundamental transformation in how/where we live, work and exercise),
further pressuring our neighborhoods.

Conclusion

For all of these reasons, we do not believe that Alameda Avenue is a viable route for the Coastal Trail, at
least not without a definitive determination that the bridge cannot be replaced where it is. Given a
balancing of the amount of time necessary for a full, legitimate consideration of these alternatives,
versus the pressing need for an immediate solution, a temporary replacement bridge should be erected
across the existing location as soon as possible, allowing time to vet a final solution.

Kindly keep us informed of any developments on this critical issue.

Thank you for your consideration.

Ethan and Karen Miller

438 and 408 Alameda Ave.

David Krasowski
468 Alameda Ave.

Pat & Robin Tierney
241 Mirada Rd.

Alec Hogg
462 Alameda Ave.

Thea Fand-Freeman
455 Alameda Ave.

Ken & Lori Wilson
455 15t Ave.

Diane Fennell & Robert Tuckey
441 Alameda Ave.

Cathy & Jay Walker
100 Mirada Rd.

Allan & Juliet Bolding
200 Medio Ave.



Barbara Von Glahn
201 Medio Ave.

Rusty & Allene Martindale
171 Medio Ave.

Sal & Deirdra Meola
151 Medio Ave.

Doug Roche & Lisa Fiore-Roche
2 Alameda Ave.

Joe, Karyn & Connor Roark
265 Alameda Ave.

Nannette Wilkinson
114 Mirada Rd.

Brook & Neil Day
201 and 203 Mirada Rd.

Michael Cooper & Julia Gilles

301 Mirada Rd.

CC: California Coastal Commission
Attn: Erik Martinez
45 Fremont St., Suite 2000, San Francisco, Ca. 94105
(Erik.Martinez@coastal.ca.gov)

San Mateo County Supervisor Don Horsley (dhorsley@smcgov.org)

MidCoast Community Council (Midcoastcommunitycouncil@gmail.org)



November__, 2020

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
Avenue. While we appreciate your correspondence of September 25, 2020 assuring Mr. Miller that
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
Avenue to 2™ St. to the east, to Mirada Road and 1°t St. on the west and south and along the entire
length of the proposed Alameda relocation route. Most of us have been in our current homes for
twenty, thirty to more than sixty years and respectfully ask that our views be carefully weighed before
such a dramatic change is made to resources as important as the Coastal Trail and the surrounding
neighborhoods.

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
alike) and that the current re-route on, and re-striping of, Highway 1 is far from ideal. Rather,
the trail needs to be fully re-connected as soon as possible. Our understanding is that the bridge
can be replaced in its current configuration by next summer. If, on the other hand, the trail is to
be routed along Alameda, as set forth below the delays would be extreme, with no guarantee
that it would ever be finally approved

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
bridge at its current alighment (CSW Stuber’s “Alternative 4”). Unless and until a thorough
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
to abandon the mouth of the creek, all of Mirada Road, the entire Coastal Trail down to ...
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
coastal dependent uses and existing structures. We believe that the Mirada Road pedestrian
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
the work would be conducted in two phases of 45 working days ( phase | ) plus 40 working days
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
creek supports raptors and other additional fauna. We also understand that the creek supports
red-legged frogs and that in the past, the Federal Register identified the creek as trout spawning
habitat. The creek is otherwise largely inaccessible, due to the depth/90-degree drop of the
banks and heavy undergrowth.

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
In some instances (across Medio), remains were found during foundation digs that further
delayed construction. Such a study will be required along Alameda, at the bridge abutments,
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
place runs counter to the rationale of eminent domine in the first instance.

And to be clear, even the MCC recognizes that the current location may well work. At the Oct.

29 meeting, Mr. Olsen expressly recognized a second alternative of dropping in a longer bridge,
over the mouth of the creek, that would reduce (if not eliminate) any perceived problems with

armoring the abutments. (Yet the MCC nonetheless soldiered on and sent their inland re-route
demand to the County and Coastal commission.)

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
have anticipated a major thoroughfare through your neighborhood.” Not so.



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
along Alameda would place it within a matter of a few feet from neighboring driveways, front
and side doors, windows and parking places.?

With respect to the “thousands” of daily travelers: This is not hyperbole. While last years’
County study spoke in terms of “hundreds” of daily users, that was pre-Covid. Each of us has
noticed an enormous increase in pedestrian/bicycle activity along Medio Avenue and Mirada
Road. Indeed, every day 50-100 people walk and bike down Alameda searching for “a way over’
the creek; that, even with signs alerting them to the highway detour.
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
Ccc: California Coastal Commission

Attn: Erik Martinez

45 Fremont St., Suite 2000, San Francisco, Ca. 94105

San Mateo County Supervisor Don Horsley (dhorsley@smcgov.org)

MidCoast Community Council (Midcoastcommunitycouncil@gmail.org)

! Another aspect of Miramar’s unique character is that many of the lots were not laid out in standard
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

From: Carl, Dan@Coastal

Sent: Thursday, October 29, 2020 9:57 AM

To: Martinez, Erik@Coastal

Cc: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal; Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal
Subject: FW:

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

FYT and for file

From: Alec Hogg <alec.hogg.jr@gmail.com>

Date: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 at 5:31 PM

To: Carl, Dan@Coastal <Dan.Carl@coastal.ca.gov>, Manna, Jeannine@ Coastal
<Jeannine.Manna@coastal.ca.gov>, Cc: dhorsley@smcgov.org <dhorsley@smcgov.org>,
mitchellimagingstudio@yahoo.com <mitchellimagingstudio@yahoo.com>

Cc: Michelle Hogg <michelleh2691 @gmail.com>, ethanmiller31@yahoo.com <ethanmiller31@yahoo.com>,
mitchphoto@aol.com <mitchphoto@aol.com>, Thoff238 @gmail.com <Thoff238@gmail.com>,
theaff57@gmail.com <theaff57 @gmail.com>, Lori@wilson5.com <Lori@wilson5.com>, ken@wilson5.com
<ken@wilson5.com>, ROBIN and PATRICK TIERNEY <adrift650@comcast.net>

Subject: <no subject>

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

I would like to suggest that further research and community engagement be completed before the MCC sends
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

C.

Alameda.

Property would need to be acquired from the homeowners on both streets. No property owners
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

The bridge across the creek would have substantial environmental impact. Arroyo de Medio is
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

The suggestions | heard presented in the last meeting focused on rejecting the currently approved
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

Moving the bridge to Alameda does not achieve the objectives of the Coastal Plan. It does not increase
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

a.

For instance, the Mid Coast Multimodal Trail project offers a wonderful opportunity to improve
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
above EIl Granada and the extensive trail network of Quarry Park and Rancho Corral de
Tierra.
iii.  potentially allow for additional parking and services (e.g bathrooms) in the parking lots
on the east side of Highway 1.
There are other county and state plans that consider building optimal access to the coast and
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



October 28, 2020

To: San Mateo County Department of Public Works, Midcoast Community Council
CC: California Coastal Commission, San Mateo County Board of Supervisors, Caltrans
From: San Mateo County Chapter, Surfrider Foundation

Re: Proposed Mirada Road Coastal Trail Bridge Replacement

The San Mateo County Chapter of Surfrider Foundation is opposed to the current proposal by
San Mateo County Department of Public Works (DPW) to replace the Mirada Road coastal trail
bridge at the same location over Arroyo de en Medio Creek along with increased coastal
armoring. It has become clear based on the August 12, 2020 presentation that DPW hasn’t
researched thoroughly or considered other options to relocate the failing bridge inland. Given
the directives of the California Coastal Commission regarding armoring along this stretch of
coast, as well as the short life span of a replacement in this location, this proposal isn’t
cost-effective nor is it in keeping with best practices and policy guidance to address sea level
rise.

DPW reported that the life expectancy of the current proposal is at best 30 to 40 years, and
most likely less, due to sea level rise and continuing erosion. Moving the trail inland is a better
long-term solution in terms of cost and in terms of benefit to our beaches and coastline. Coastal
armoring has consistently been shown to increase bluff erosion and loss of our beaches, and is
inconsistent with California Coastal Act policies as are the project plans submitted by DPW to
the California Coastal Commission (CDP Application 2-17-0289). In the application, DPW
proposes constructing soil nail walls at three locations north and south of the existing bridge, as
well as installing riprap at the base of the soil nail walls. This is not only inconsistent with the
Hazards policies of the California Coastal Act but also contradicts the San Mateo County Local
Coastal Program.

The landscape and the stakeholders are only going to become more complicated over time, so
proceeding to move the bridge and coastal trail inland sooner rather than later also avoids
greater complications in terms of more substantial disruption and possibly more property
stakeholders in future years.

It is also inconsistent with the July 11, 2019 decision of the CA Coastal Commission regarding a
proposed seawall at 2 Mirada Road to protect apartment buildings and a portion of the Coastal
Trail (CDP_Application 2-16-0784) south of Arroyo de en Medio Creek. Our Chapter argued that
the Coastal Trail is not a coastal-dependent use, but can be relocated and is therefore not




entitled to shoreline armoring, and that using the Coastal Trail as justification would set a terrible
precedent for the rest of the state. Commissioners agreed and approved the seawall only for
protection of the apartment building at 2 Mirada, not for the Coastal Trail.

Additionally, our Chapter encourages San Mateo County to explore the option suggested by
others of the potential for a southern access trail easement on the vacant former railroad parcel
west of Alameda, which more closely lines up with Alameda north of the creek and with the
Coastal Trail re-route on State Parks land to the south.

Based on all of the above, the local San Mateo County Chapter of Surfrider Foundation strongly
supports relocation of the bridge and coastal trail inland as the most environmentally sound,
sustainable, and most financially responsible solution.



Midcoast Community Council
An elected Advisory Council to the San Mateo County Board of Supervisors
representing Montara, Moss Beach, El Granada, Princeton, and Miramar
PO Box 248, Moss Beach, CA 94038 www.MidcoastCommunityCouncil.org

Date: October 28, 2020

To: Jim Porter, DPW Director
Cc: Erik Martinez, Coastal Program Analyst, California Coastal Commission
Cc: Supervisor Don Horsley

Subject: Coastal Development Permit (CDP) Application Number 2-20-0319 (Mirada Road Soil
Nail Wall and Pedestrian Bridge Replacement dated 6/3/2020)

The Midcoast Community Council has strong concerns about the large area of the proposed soll
nail walls and rock slope protection (RSP) associated with this project as detailed in the plans
dated January 16, 2020.

In addition to the problematic tie-in with the existing unpermitted RSP at the 2 Mirada Road
parking lot, the proposed armoring will significantly narrow the creek channel. We are
concerned that the proposed armoring will focus wave energy against the creek banks upstream
of the bridge, and will likely cause increased creek bank erosion.

The significant armoring proposed will also likely result in beach erosion near this project, and
would also remove the informal trail access to the beach that exists on the south bank, east of
the existing pedestrian bridge. That access is the only beach access for several hundred yards
north and south of the creek.

Recent Coastal Commission decisions regarding a new home at Arbor Lane in Moss Beach
have treated creek bank armoring similar to armoring of the ocean bluffs, and have not allowed
armoring to protect the Coastal Trail just south of the Casa Mira condominiums near this project,
instead suggesting that the Coastal Trail be moved inland.

The MCC requests that the bridge be built further inland, rather than rebuild a bridge at the
same location, since sea-level rise and increased storm energy will likely make this a short
duration project. The closest location would be at Alameda Ave. Small easements or purchase
of property would be needed on the north bank to connect the two sides, due to the offset.
Alternatively, an easement could be obtained across the eastern side of parcel 048-052-260, In
either case, the Coastal Trail could then be re-aligned on State Parks property to join Mirada
Rd in the vicinity of Ramona Way right of way.

A less desirable, but possibly easier alternative would be to make the proposed replacement
pedestrian bridge 20-25 feet longer, thereby moving the new abutments 10-12 feet further back
from the creek bank, greatly reducing or removing the need for armoring to protect the
abutments. This alternative would not solve the issues related to sea-level rise, so this is only a
near term solution.

MIDCOAST COMMUNITY COUNCIL
s/Len Erickson Chair

Attachment: Letter from Lennie Roberts, Green Foothills



October 13, 2020

To: Midcoast Community Council

From: Lennie Roberts, Legislative Advocate, Green Foothills

Re: Item 4b on the October 14, 2020 MCC Agenda: Replacement bridge over Arroyo de en
Medio Creek

Green Foothills supports relocation of the failed bridge over Arroyo de en Medio Creek rather
than replacement, based on the following:

The project plans submitted by County Public Works to the Coastal Commission (CDP
Application for Soil Nail Wall and Pedestrian Bridge Replacement Project on Mirada Road,
Application Number 2-17-0289) include constructing soil nail walls at three locations north and
south of the existing bridge, demolishing the abandoned concrete arch bridge, and installing
rock slope protection at the base of the soil nail walls. As proposed, the project is inconsistent
with the Hazards policies of the California Coastal Act and the San Mateo County Local Coastal
Program.

The July 11, 2019 decision of the California Coastal Commission regarding a proposed seawall at
2 Mirada Road, Half Moon Bay, (CDP Application 2-16-0784) just south of Arroyo de en Medio
Creek, included Findings that the California Coastal Trail could be relocated inland rather than
extending armoring the bluffs to protect it, and that such relocation as well as limitation on the
extent of the proposed seawall is the less environmentally damaging feasible alternative.

Based on this recent decision and in light of sea level rise projections, the prudent action now is
to relocate the bridge inland a sufficient distance so the California Coastal Trail and other
infrastructure will not be subject to accelerated bluff erosion and structural failure in the
future.



Date: 10/25/2020
To: Midcoast Community Council

From: Patrick and Robin Tierney
241 Mirada Rd., HMB

Re: MCC position on Mirada Road Coastal Trail Bridge

We are homeowners that have been impacted by the closure of the recent Mirada Road Coastal Trail

Bridge in Miramar and would be greatly affected by not replacing the failed bridge and, as the MCC has
suggested, repositioning the trail directly across the street from our house. As the red dot shows in the
image below, our house is right next to the proposed alignment you are suggesting for the Coastal Trail.

Suggested trail route on MCC website and our house

There are literally hundreds of people using the coastal trail on a weekend day and with the bridge
closure, all of that traffic has now been shifted onto Mirada Rd past our house. This has had noise,
safety and quality of life impacts to our formerly quiet neighborhood. Traffic on Mirada Rd has

significantly increased. There are no sidewalks on Mirada and the street is narrow and line-of-sight

distances are very short in many places. An ambulance was called to care for a bike rider who crashed
while avoiding pedestrians recently and we have witnessed several other hazardous situations with
bicyclists zooming down the street, disregarding other bicyclists, people and cars. Groups of pedestrians
are walking up the middle of the road, one recent group with a 3-4 year old on a tricycle in the middle of
the street near a blind corner on Mirada. All my neighbors have seen cars speeding up the street
through the Alameda-Mirada intersection. This situation is vey different from prior to the bridge closure
when cars, bicyclists and pedestrians on the Coastal Trail were separated from cars. The number of
accidents from this crazy dangerous combination of new trail users and cars on Mirada Road south of
Medio Creek is likely to increase in the future, if left the way it is now.

More people are already partying in and using our yards and vacant fields as toilets. There is a small
parking area, but are no restrooms in the area, since CA State Parks removed a nearby portable toilet on
State Park land at the intersection of San Andreas and the Coastal Trail. We have seen more visitors
peeing in the parking area across from our home in the last five weeks than we ever want to again. The
neighbors pick up piles of trash every weekend- neither the City of HMB nor State Parks ever cleans this
parking area and there are no trash cans.



This part of Mirada Road has always been a quiet residential area, not a commercial strip, like north of
Medio Creek. We are not opposed to use of the Coastal Trail. We welcome visitors to the coast. Butthe
current detour up Mirada was told to our neighborhood as a temporary situation until the bridge is
replaced, not a permanent replacement. We want a bridge replacement to take back this additional
traffic, as promised, not keep it on our residential street.

By not supporting the bridge replacement you are shoving all this use down our throats without
consulting the neighbors directly. No one from the County, MCC or City has contacted us and yet we
have been and will be greatly impacted by your proposed actions. This is not right. There are no other
sections of the Coastal Trail in HMB which go through neighborhoods. Do not make a hasty wrong
decision. Keep tourism development, like the Coastal Trail, out of our residential neighborhood.

The entire 3.5 mile coastal trail was built to be a significant distance from all residential homes to ensure
the safety of all homeowners and protect the property values, EXCEPT for the portion of the trail that
runs through COUNTY and STATE PROPERTY. Moving the coastal trail inward away from the coast would
change the dynamics of the coastal trail from a coastal route of land owned by the county to a trail that
runs through personal residential property owned by individual families. Moving the coastal trail inward
to run between residential properties would have a direct impact on the safety of said property owners
as hundreds of individuals would be accessing the backyards and the front yards of these properties on a
daily basis. Moving the coastal trail through the residential backyards will not only potentially jeopardize
the safety of the residents, but as one real estate professional told us, will definitely hurt the current
property values of this neighborhood.

The rapid erosion of the bridge foundation occurred because the existing rip rap near the bridge has not
been maintained by the County and City of HMB. The bridge was closed because the current bridge was
poorly designed and built of steel that rusted badly. That is not the Mirada homeowners’ fault. The
County and State have recently replaced the same type of manufactured bridges over Pilarcitos Creek
and Frenchman’s Creek, both in the floodplain. Why is it that another bridge in the same general area is
not proposed to be replaced when there are funding and plans to do so? The Mirada Road homeowners
should not suffer due to these mistakes.

Another major concern with your position of not replacing the Medio bridge is you are basically
recommending to abandon businesses and houses along Mirada Road north of Medio Creek, especially
the three homes along the edge at the mouth of the creek. How would you like your house to be
allowed to fall into the ocean, at a total loss to you, when it could easily be avoided just by maintaining
what is there? We are not asking anything more than to fix the problem the City of HMB and County
created by not maintaining the rip rap on each side of the Medio Creek bridge, and by installing an
inferior and inappropriately manufactured bridge.

Rerouting a new Coastal Trail onto Alameda Avenue is fraught with problems and is opposed by 100% of
the residents in this immediate area. It would completely change the character of the neighborhood,
from eminent domain used to take private land, cutting people’s property by 25%, sidewalks, noise all
day, trash, increased theft- these are not figments of our imagination, as we see them already with the
temporary bridge closure. How would you like the coastal trail reducing your front yard by 25% and
going right next to the windows in your house? | invite MCC members to come to this area on a sunny
summer Saturday at 10:30 am and let neighbors show you what is it really like. Spend more than 10
minutes observing: bring beach chairs and a picnic lunch during a sunny summer Saturday. Do not made
a hasty inaccurate decision to send a letter to the Coastal Commission opposing bridge replacement, as
you suggested in your last MCC meeting.




Replacing the Medio Creek Coastal Trail bridge in its current location could save money. No new
engineering studies for a new alignment would be needed. No purchase of private land on Alameda
through eminent domain would be needed. No rerouting and construction of the sewer line would be
needed. The cost of a new Alameda bridge might be more than replacing at the existing site. And it
would give us time to plan and coordinate actions for the entire beach front area along Mirada, without
having to redo earlier mis-starts. A long-term plan will spread out the cost from being born primarily by
the three homeowners along north Mirada and the homeowners on Alameda and Mirada, to a broader
group in the County.

Any planned changes in the Medio Creek bridge and rerouting of the Coastal Trail must be done in
tandem with planning for ALL of Mirada Road, north and south of the creek. What are we going to do
about the section of Mirada north of the creek, including the Bach and Miramar Beach Restaurant? You
can’t just let homes on one part of Mirada Road fall into the ocean, while de facto supporting the
continued protection of some homes and commercial businesses elsewhere on the same street. This is
a justice and fairness issue.

What happens on the Medio Creek bridge affects all of Mirada Road and the County and City cannot try
to piece-meal the issues. The County, City, State Parks, and the Harbor District need a plan, including
safe beach assess points, roads, parking, restrooms, etc., for all of Mirada Road and the coastal trail that
traverses it.

There are better, less costly alternatives to an Alameda trail route. First and best is to support the
County’s Bluff Stabilization Plan and replace the failed bridge with a durable bridge. The plans are
drawn, and funds are available, and it is slated to start construction in 6 months with Coastal
Commission approval. Again, bluff stabilization would be maintaining what is already there. This would
not condemn the loss of houses and businesses along Mirada Road, north and south of Medio Creek,
and would keep the Coastal Trail traffic and impacts where they have been and are better able to be
accommodated, and away from the residential areas. The bridge replacement now would give the
stakeholders at least the 10+ years needed to get an approved comprehensive plan for Mirada Road and
required public input. This includes MCC, the County, City and the Harbor District supporting the
transfer of sand from dredging the harbor and placing it on Surfers Beach- Miramar Beach area to
replenish sand and slow erosion of the bluffs.

| strongly urge the Mid Coast Community Council to change your draft no-replacement at the current
site position and, in fact, to support replacement of Medio Creek Coastal Trail Bridge in its current
location, as soon as possible. Replacement of the bridge at its current location should not be delayed.
This will minimize impacts to residential neighborhoods and businesses, increase trail user safety and
give stakeholders time to plan for the future of this area. | also urge the Council to support the
development of a comprehensive plan for the Mirada Road corridor, north and south of the bridge,
which includes a thorough public discussion of impacts to residences and businesses and alternative
alignments, after the Medio Creek bridge crisis has been solved for at least 10+ years by replacing the
bridge in its current location.

Regards,

Patrick and Robin Tierney
241 Mirada Road

Half Moon Bay, CA 94019
adrift650@comcast.net



Martinez, Erik@Coastal

From: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal

Sent: Tuesday, October 20, 2020 9:59 AM

To: Martinez, Erik@Coastal

Cc: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

Subject: FW: Moving Coastal Trail in Miramar Half Moon Bay through residential area on Mirada

Road and Alameda Ave

FYI, this is a comment on the Mirada Road Bridge project. Put in the file.

From: Benoit, Greg@Coastal <Greg.Benoit@coastal.ca.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 20, 2020 8:00 AM

To: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal <Jeannine.Manna@coastal.ca.gov>

Cc: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal <Stephanie.Rexing@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: FW: Moving Coastal Trail in Miramar Half Moon Bay through residential area on Mirada Road and Alameda Ave

Good morning Jeannine and Stephanie. | hope you and your families are doing well during these
crazy times.
| am forwarding this message along.

Take care:

Greg

From: Lisa Roche <lisroche@me.com>

Sent: Monday, October 19, 2020 10:12 PM

To: Benoit, Greg@Coastal <Greg.Benoit@coastal.ca.gov>

Subject: Moving Coastal Trail in Miramar Half Moon Bay through residential area on Mirada Road and Alameda Ave

Dear Sir and Madam,

It has come to my attention that the coastal commission in Half Moon Bay is considering the move of the coastal trail
from the current coastline inland through the residential area of Miramar along the small street of Alameda and Mirada
which is where | reside with my family. As a physical therapist of spinal cord injury and unfortunately having observed
major traumatic bike accidents involving those being hit by motor vehicles, it is of grave concern that | write this email. If
the plans that the coastal commission is considering comes to fruition an enormous incidence of motor vehicle verses
pedestrian accidents will occur. Currently one consideration is moving the coastal trail along the small road of Mirada
road and then turning onto an even smaller road on Alameda to cross over the creek to Medio street. The amount of
cars on a daily basis that drive extremely fast along Mirada will inadvertently hit the many pedestrians and children
riding their bikes to turn onto Alameda and cross over the busy Mirada road. In addition the homes such as mine on
Alameda ave as well as the homes on Mirada have many blind spots when backing out of their driveways that will
jeopardize the safety of children and adults riding bikes and walking and will potential be life threatening. It is with the
utmost urgency | ask that you forward this email onto whomever considers this new access as a good idea as those
individuals have not studied the Life threatening and harmful implications to the community from moving the trail to
this new route.

Thank you in advance for your time and attention to this matter.



Lisa and Doug Roche
2 Alameda Ave
Half Moon Bay, Ca 94019

C: 858-449-2113
0:415-777-1300



Midcoast Community Council

representing Montara, Moss Beach, El Granada, Princeton, and Miramar
P.O. Box 248, Moss Beach, CA 94038-0248 - www.MidcoastCommunityCouncil.org

Len Erickson Michelle Weil Claire Toutant Barbra Mathewson Dan Haggerty Dave Olson
Chair Vice-Chair Secretary Treasurer

Date: August 12, 2020

To:  Jim Porter, Khoa Vo (DPW), Alejandro Lopez, Tony Tavares (Caltrans), Erik
Martinez (Coastal Comm)

cc: Supervisor Don Horsley, Julia Malmo-Laycock (SMC Active Transportation),
Capt. Saul Lopez (Sheriff), Capt. Jim Allen (California Highway Patrol)

From: Midcoast Community Council

Subject: Closure of Medio Bridge and Subsequent Detour onto SR1

Recently, the bridge on the Coastal Trail over Medio Creek in Miramar was
abruptly closed for safety reasons largely related to coastal erosion. Users of the
trail are detoured to the shoulder of Highway One. This section is dangerous
because of the narrow shoulder, speed of traffic and lines of sight.
The Coastal Trail in this area serves a large volume of bicycle and foot traffic in
an area where vehicular road traffic is congested. Much of the use is
recreational, but access to work, school and commercial establishments is also
substantial. All ages and abilities use the trail. This section of the trail connects
Half Moon Bay with the communities of the MidCoast.
We are aware that efforts are underway to resolve this situation, and strongly
support this.
We have two major areas of concern:
1) Rapid replacement of the bridge in a way that avoids continued damage
by coastal erosion
2) Immediate action to provide a safe detour route. Currently, we see
pedestrians of all ages, bicyclists and parents with strollers using this
dangerous path. Immediate action could involve cautionary signage and
other temporary measures to alert drivers to the detour. Since the bridge
repairs may not be rapid, stronger measures to harden the detour route
will be needed.
Thank you for your attention to this urgent situation. The Midcoast Community
Council is available to assist in your efforts.

Claire Toutant, Secretary
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From: John Doughty

To: Theresa Engle; Ananda, Renee@Coastal

Cc: Lisaj, Krzysztof@SMCGOV; Mark Chow; Eric Chen; Wency Ng; Julie Casagrande; Magda Gonzalez
Subject: RE: San Mateo County Soil Nail Wall Project on Mirada Road in Half Moon Bay, CA

Date: Monday, April 17, 2017 10:26:24 AM

The City of Half Moon Bay is in support of the application and delegate filing and processing to San
Mateo County.

John

John T. Doughty

Community Development Director
Office: 650-726-8252

Mobile: 831-247-1088

Email: jdoughty@hmbcity.com

“Do not let what you cannot do interfere with what you can do.”
John Wooden

City of Half Moon Bay
501 Main Street
Half Moon Bay, CA 94019

www.hmbcity.com

From: Theresa Engle [mailto:tengle@smcgov.org]

Sent: Monday, April 17, 2017 9:44 AM

To: Renee@Coastal Ananda <Renee.Ananda@coastal.ca.gov>

Cc: Krzysztof Lisaj <klisaj@smcgov.org>; Mark Chow <mchow@smcgov.org>; Eric Chen
<echen@smcgov.org>; Wency Ng <wng@smcgov.org>; John Doughty <JDoughty@hmbcity.com>;
Julie Casagrande <jcasagrande@smcgov.org>

Subject: San Mateo County Soil Nail Wall Project on Mirada Road in Half Moon Bay, CA

Good morning Renee,

The County of San Mateo submitted a Coastal Development Permit application for soil nail walls at
three locations along Mirada Road in Half Moon Bay, CA on March 31, 2017. The project footprint



falls within the jurisdiction of San Mateo County and the city of Half Moon Bay. Per our discussion
last week, this email authorizes the California Coastal Commission to prepare a Consolidated Permit
for the Mirada Road Soil Nail Wall Project in Half Moon Bay, CA.

Representatives from the County and the city of Half Moon Bay are included in this authorization
email.

Please let me know if | can provide any additional information for the Consolidated Permit approval
process.

Thank you,

Theresn Engle

Resource Conservation Specialist

San Mateo County Department of Public Works
555 County Center, 5th Floor

Redwood City, CA 94063

Ph: (650) 599-1448

tengle@smcgov.org

ﬁ Pleaze consider the environment before printing this email












































































































































































































































































































































































































